
 

Commencement - 6:30 PM              Council Chambers – Municipal Complex  
Thursday, May 12, 2011                        600 West Blue Heron Boulevard 
 
 

I. MOMENT OF SILENCE AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
S. Lashea Brooks, Chairperson  Richard Baumgart, Vice Chairperson  
Gary Brannen, Board Member   Rena James, Board Member   
Edward Kunuty, Board Member  Caryn St. John, Board Member 
Julius Whigham, Sr., Board Member  Vacant, 1st Alternate / 2nd

 
 Alternate   

III. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - April 14, 2011 
 

V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
A. Draft Language for Portable Storage Containers 

1. Presentation by Staff 
2. Public Comments 
3. Board Comments 

 

VI. NEW BUSINESS  
A. Special Exception Application; Ambrosia of the Palm Beaches, 2675 Lake Drive 

 
AN APPLICATION FROM AMBROSIA OF THE PALM BEACHES REQUESTING A 
SPECIAL EXCEPTION APPROVAL TO OPERATE A FULL-TIME RESIDENTIAL 
HOUSING FACILITY, INCLUDING RESIDENTIAL SUBSTANCE ABUSE 
TREATMENT SERVICES, AT 2675 LAKE DRIVE, WITHIN A MULTIPLE UNIT 
STRUCTURE ON A 0.47 ACRE PARCEL. 
 

1. Presentation by Staff and Applicant 
2. Public Comments 
3. Board Comments 

  

VII. GENERAL DISCUSSION 
A. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
B. SELECTION OF CHAIRPERSON AND VICE-CHAIR 
C. PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD COMMENTS  

1. Project Updates / Upcoming Projects 
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

If anyone wishes to speak on any of the items presented on this agenda, please complete a pink public comment card 
and give the card to the Clerk of the Planning and Zoning Board.  Cards must be submitted before item is discussed. 

 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons in need of a special accommodation to participate 
in this proceeding shall, within a reasonable time prior to any proceeding, contact the office of the Legislative Aide 
of the City of Riviera Beach, 600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Florida 33404, Telephone 561-845-
4095 or TDD 561-840-3350.  

NOTICE 

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH 
LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY 

 

THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
 



P&Z Minutes 4.14.2011 - Page 1 of 5 
 

April 14, 2011 - Planning and Zoning Board Meeting 
The Planning and Zoning Board for the City of Riviera Beach met in regular session on 
Thursday, April 14, 2011 in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Complex, 600 West Blue 
Heron Blvd, Riviera Beach, FL 33404. The meeting was called to order at 6:35 PM. A moment 
of silence was followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and roll call. 
 

ROLL CALL 
Gary Brannen, Chairperson   Present 
S. Lashea Brooks, Vice-Chair      Present 
Richard Baumgart, Board Member  Present 
Rena James, Board Member   Absent 
Edward Kunuty, Board Member   Present 
Caryn St. John, Board Member   Present @ 6:40 p.m. 
Julius Whigham, Board Member  Present 
Vacant, 1st

Vacant, 2
 Alternate    Vacant 

nd

 
 Alternative    Vacant 

Also present were Planning and Zoning Administrator Jeff Gagnon, Senior Planner Mario Velasquez, 
Consulting City Attorney Lynn Solomon and five (5) members of the public. 
 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA – None 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – 1.13.2011 
 

 

January 13, 2011 Minutes – Motion to Approve with the necessary correction by Mr. Kunuty, 
Second by Ms. Brooks. Unanimous approval (6-0). 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Workshop
 

: Draft language for Portable Storage Containers, (F.K.A. “PODS”). 

a. Presentation by Staff. 
 

Mr. Gagnon – Presented and explained the draft language to the board. 
 

Mr. Kunuty – Recommended providing a diagram with the language to explain the triangle of visibility. 
 

Ms. Brooks – Questioned the six months time frame in section B. If a problem is there already, why let it 
sit there for six months? Shouldn’t that time frame be shorter? 
 

b. Public Comments. 
 

Ms. Leonard – How much is the license going to cost? No info on the paper, only $500 penalty which is 
quite of excessive. Also ten business days is a short turn around, allow at least thirty (30) to sixty (60) 
days. Ms. Leonard believes it should be tied down but ten (10) days is not enough to do the right 
procedures. 
 

Mr. Ward – Consistency. (A.1. “on the property”), (B. “on the premises”), (F. “on a lot”). He suggested 
the terminology to meet the rest of the code of the city so it is all the same. He is also very concerned 
about the cost of the permit; it seemed to be a revenue generator. He also commented on the size of the 
containers allowed. It should be an approximate of size taking in consideration the thickness of the 
container itself. 
 

Mr. Gagnon – Answered Ms. Leonard’s question by informing that the actual cost of the license is $50. 
The reason why there are no numbers is to bring this forward to the board and make numbers during the 
workshop. Mr. Gagnon does not think that this is just a revenue generator like Mr. Ward said. The fee 



P&Z Minutes 4.14.2011 - Page 2 of 5 
 

needs to large enough so is not convenient for people just to pay $50 a month and keep the container for 
an extended period of time. The fee can be flexible. Also, as a response to the inconsistency comment on 
the language, the intent is to refer to the parcel. The language would be corrected and consistent. Also the 
size of the container is an approximate measurement. 
 

Mr. Brannen – Asked staff if it is possible to have the container dimensions determined at the time of 
registration and if bigger make the exception for approval. 
 

Mr. Gagnon – Staff would request the size of the container and allow approximation of size within a foot. 
It is better to sate the average size container allowed or smaller. 
 

c. Board Comments. 
 

Ms. Brooks – Thinks that six months is a long period of time. Ten business days is ok but six months is 
too much for a POD to be sitting on someone’s yard. 
 

Ms. St. John – Would like to see the ten business days go to thirty days and keep to thirty days the 
duration to renew. She also asked about the fees and time constraints for trash containers (dumpsters), and 
expressed the idea to possibly mirror what those terms are. 
 

Mr. Gagnon – Is not aware of the actual timeline but believes that the city has a contract with an 
individual waste management company. 
 

Ms. St. John – Would highly suggested similarity between those two codes. 
 

Mr. Kunuty – Agrees and thinks that giving thirty days is a more reasonable time frame than ten days. He 
also expressed his experience on (shipping) containers which they are all standard size. He would check if 
there is an industry standard, which he suspects there is. Using the word “POD” which is a brand name 
should be avoided and use the word portable storage container. The six month time frame should also be 
debated. 
 

Mr. Baumgart – Asked about the parameters for apartments or condo complexes as far as placement. 
 

Mr. Gagnon – Provided statement A-2 as an answer where it said that HOA approval may be required. 
Also the diagram required would reflect the true location of the storage container. 
 

Ms. St. John – Asked about the level of plan requirement as far as if architectural plans are required or 
just basic self explanatory plans would do it. These requirements should be clearer. 
 

Mr. Gagnon – Does not think staff would require a survey. An aerial would be ok. 
 

Mr. Kunuty – Thinks that the word “site plan” should be dropped out of the code. 
 

Mr. Whigham – Agrees to most of the very well put comments from the board members. He is also glad 
that this is being regulated, especially after his experience from past hurricanes. 
 

Mr. Brannen – Asked if there was a fee for the first ten days that is on point A. He also asked about the 
fee charged after the first ten days and how it would work if the time changes to thirty days. Also, if the 
full price would have to be paid if only fifteen of the thirty days are used. What would happen if the six 
months time frame is adopted and the person using the container needs more time? 
 

Ms. St. John – Recommends the time frame to be thirty days and no proration. If needed more than six 
months, then a penalty. 
 

Ms. Brooks – Thinks that allowing over six months would become a convenience to the person using the 
container for personal storage purposes because it would be cheaper just to pay $50 for thirty days and 
have next to the house instead of having to go to a storage facility. Also the amount of days needs to be 
specified as calendar days to avoid confusions. 
 
Mr. Kunuty – Commented that there are also storage and delivery fees. He would like to get more details 
on the rental fees. 



P&Z Minutes 4.14.2011 - Page 3 of 5 
 

 

Mr. Baumgart – Explained some of the prices he researched. A $52 drop-off fee, $94 for a 12x8x8 and 
$132 for a 16x8x8 per month. If someone is really doing a work at their home, could it be tied to a 
building permit? 
 

Mr. Gagnon – Not aware of specific time frame if related to an open building permit. Staff’s ultimate goal 
is not to limit the use of the containers but to have rules in place to regulate excessive and abusive time 
frames. 
 

Ms. St. John – Asked again for the trash receptacles info for next meeting. She strongly believes they 
should be similar. 
 

Mr. Kunuty – Also asked again for the details on the rental fees. 
 

Mr. Brannen – Recommended notifying the container user when the six months are almost up and make 
sure the person is aware of the penalty. 
  

Mr. Gagnon – The language would be provided when applying for the permit, but not sure if staff would 
be able to issue a notification letter. 
 

B. Workshop
 

: Draft language for Temporary Political Signage. 
a. Presentation by Staff. 

 

Mr. Gagnon – Presented and explained the draft language to the board. He also provided similar codes 
from other municipalities as back up documents. 
 

b. Public Comments. 
 

Mr. Cobb – Asked how this item came up to the board and also commented on the political signage 
especially on the abundance amount that was placed on the right of ways the recent elections that just 
happened. 
 

Ms. Leonard – Asked if this included special elections or just elections that are yearly. She also 
commented on the inconsistency of point 10 with the words “may” and “shall” and also to specify who 
would be fined, the homeowner or the tenant?. Ms. Leonard also expressed her concern on how to 
regulate that on the properties that are in the city but not annexed to the city’s jurisdiction. 
 

Mr. Ward – Commented on a candidate’s time of advertisement which was earlier than the others. He also 
expressed his concern on the need of clarification on the form of authorization for the location of the 
signs. Also commented on the size allowed and the time allowed to start placing the signs. Needs a lot of 
work. 
 

c. Board Comments. 
 

Mr. Whigham – Commented on how the advertising used to be. He is glad this item came up, because he 
wants this city to look beautiful. Also likes and hopes that the board sticks with the one month time 
frame. Mr. Whigham thinks that the code is ok and should not be changed. 
 

Mr. Gagnon – Answered Mr. Cobb’s question on how this item came up to the board and it was all due to 
the previous elections that left signs all over the city. Also answered Ms. Leonard’s question by stating 
that staff intents to implement this rules to all the elections that the citizens of Riviera Beach can vote on. 
Also mentioned that he is not aware of what is currently being done the signs as an answer to Mr. Ward’s 
question. 
 

Mr. Kunuty – Corrected the language to have it state “pertaining to all elections”. He also commented on 
the size of the signage allowed, the language “may” and “shall”, and the timing before and after for 
installation and removal of signage. 
 



P&Z Minutes 4.14.2011 - Page 4 of 5 
 

Ms. St. John – Expressed how exited she is about the item and really supported the idea of requiring a 
deposit before installation to make sure the sign get removed. She also agreed with the amount of signage 
allowed per property and the timing for removal. 
 

Mr. Gagnon – Asked the board who is responsible for signage at residential properties? Also, if a 
candidate that lost disperses signs from the candidate that won, who would be held responsible? 
 

Ms. St. John – Believes that the candidate should be responsible for the signage. 
 

Mr. Brannen – Supports the time frame and agrees with the draft code but the concern is about 
enforcement. Definitely supports the deposit for the signage but would like to clarify where the deposit 
would go after the election when the signage is all removed. 
 

Mr. Baumgart – The item does not seem that important to develop this type of language especially when 
signage is placed on private property. Can the city remove them if they are on the right of way? 
 

Mr. Gagnon – The city could remove them but it would have some fees associated with staff time. 
 

Ms. Brooks – Commented on the amount of signage being regulated on private property. 
 

Ms. St. John – One sign, per issue, per yard. Having one sign vs. ten signs would still show the preference 
of that resident. 
 

Mr. Kunuty – Thinks that the candidate should be allowed to start advertisement on the day of 
registration. 
 

GENERAL DISCUSSION 
A. Public Comments 
 

Storage Container Rep – Mentioned that he is not aware of any code enforcement issues in the city of 
Riviera Beach. He also explained that they are always helping the customer in case there is an issue with 
code enforcement. Also explained that they offer a climate controlled storage to their clients when they do 
not need the container by their yard. Lastly, he commented that the $50 permit fee is costly in relation to 
the storage fee, which runs from $119 to $179 based on climate control storage; therefore the permit fee 
would be a really significant cost for their customers. (Call center should recommend 3-5 days on site for 
Riviera Beach). 
 

Mr. Cobb – Commented on political signage. 
 

Mr. Xavier – Commented on the time to remove signage, maybe from 7 to 14 business days after 
elections. Double check the responsibility of the signage. He also recommended checking the time and 
fee collection for the PODS permit. 
 

Mr. Ward – Expressed his concern on S.R. 710 and it needs to connect to US1. He also commented on the 
development plans for 20th

 

 street east of Broadway. Also said to be careful when defining Home owner 
association and Property Owner Association. 

Ms. Mahoney – Commented on the new FPL Plant plans from months ago and that it could be an issue 
for the city like the tragedy that recently happened in Japan. She also commented on issues previously 
brought to the board regarding US1, EPA issues next to her business, and to have planning and zoning 
board meeting televised. 
 

B. Selection of chairperson and vice-chair. 
 

 

Nomination for Ms. Brooks as Chairperson by Mr. Wigham and by Mr. Kunuty. Nomination 
accepted by Ms. Brooks. Unanimous vote (6/0). 

 

Nomination for Mr. Kunuty as Vice Chairperson by Mr. Wigham and by Ms. Brooks. Nomination 
declined by Mr. Kunuty. 



P&Z Minutes 4.14.2011 - Page 5 of 5 
 

 

Nomination for Mr. Bumgart as Vice Chairperson by Mr. Kunuty and by Mr. Wigham. 
Nomination accepted by Mr. Baumgart. Unanimous votes (6/0). 

C. Planning and Zoning Board Comments 
a. Project Updates / Upcoming Projects 

 

- Newcomb Hall Meeting 
- Schooner Inn 
- AMRIT Issue 
- Drug + Rehab facilities 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to Adjourn by Mr. Kunuty, Second by Mr. Brannen; Meeting adjourned at 8:55pm. 



NO. 6003529
PUBLIC NOTICE

The Town Commission of the Town of
Palm Beach Shores, Florida will con-
duct a public hearing to be held on May
16, 2011 at 7:00 p.m. at Town Hall, 247
Edwards Lane, Palm Beach Shores,
Florida, and from time to time thereaf-
ter as may be necessary at which time
the following ordinance is proposed for
adoption:

ORDINANCE NO. O-1-11
A N O R D I N A N C E O F T H E T O W N
C O M M I S S I O N O F T H E T O W N O F
PALM BEACH SHORES, FLORIDA,
D E C L A R I N G A N D E N A C T I N G A
TWELVE (12) MONTH SUSPENSION OF
THE IMPOSITION OF ALL TOWN LEV-
IED IMPACT FEES FOR ALL DEVELOP-
M E N T A N D R E - D E V E O L O P M E N T
PROJECTS ON PROPERTY LOCATED
IN THE TOWN'S ZONING DISTRICT
"B"; IN ORDER TO INCENTIVIZE SUCH
DEVELOPMENT OR RE-DEVELOP-
MENT; PROVIDING A CONFLICTS
C L A U S E A N D A S E V E R A B I L I T Y
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

Said ordinances may be inspected by the
public at any time during the regular
business hours of 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.
in the Office of the Town Clerk at Town
Hall. Interested parties may appear at
said meeting and be heard with respect
to these ordinances.

If a person decides to appeal any deci-
sion made by the Town Commission
with respect to any matter considered
at this meeting or hearing, he or she
wil l need to ensure that a verbatim
record of the proceedings is made,
which record should include the testi-
mony and evidence from which the
appeal is to be based. The Town of
Palm Beach Shores does not provide
such a record.

BY THE ORDER OF THE TOWN COM-
MISSION

CAROLYN J. GANGWER, TOWN CLERK
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
May 5, 2011

NO. 6006884
PUBLIC NOTICE

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
FOR

PORTABLE STORAGE CONTAINERS
CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA

The Planning & Zoning Board will con-
duct a Planning and Zoning meeting on
Thursday, May 12, 2011 at 6:30 PM or
soon thereafter, and from time to time
thereafter as necessary, in the Council
Chambers at the Municipal Complex,
600 West Blue Heron Blvd., Riv iera
Beach to consider new draft regula-
tions for portable storage containers.

Background material is avai lable for
review in its entirety in the Community
Development Department between the
hours of 8:30 AM and 5:00 PM, except
holidays.

P L E A S E T A K E N O T I C E A N D B E
ADVISED, that if any interested person
desires to appeal any decision made by
the Board or Council with respect to
any matter considered at the meetings,
s u c h i n t e r e s t e d p e r s o n , a t o w n
expense, will need a record of the pro-
ceedings, and for such purpose may
need to ensure that a verbatim record
of the proceedings is made, which
record includes the testimony and evi-
dence upon which the appeal is to be
based.

In accordance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, persons need-
ing special accommodations to partici-
pate in the proceedings should contact
the Legislative Aide at 561-845-4095 no
later than 96 hours prior to the pro-
ceedings. If hearing impaired, tele-
phone the Florida Relay Services 1-
800-955-8771 (TDD) or 1-800-955-8770
(Voice) for assistance.

Carrie E. Ward, Master Municipal Clerk
City Clerk
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
May 5, 2011

NO. 6003231
NOTICE OF TIME PERIOD IN WHICH
ANY LANDOWNER CAN REQUEST

HIS OR HER NAME TO APPEAR
ON THE OFFICIAL BALLOT FOR

ELECTION OF SUPERVISORS
FOR THE SOUTH INDIAN RIVER

WATER CONTROL DISTRICT
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that any
landowner within SOUTH INDIAN RIVER
W A T E R C O N T R O L D I S T R I C T w h o
wishes his or her name to appear on the
Official Ballot for Election of Supervi-
sors for the South Indian River Water
Control District should send written
notification to the District's Office at

NO. 6008261
LEGAL NOTICE, TOWN OF LAKE PARK
Please take notice that on Tuesday, June
28, 2011 the Town of Lake Park, Florida
will conduct a special election to be
held at the three voting locations in
Town.

TOWN OF LAKE PARK
SPECIAL ELECTION

TUESDAY, June 28, 2011
On Tuesday, June 28, 2011, the Town of
Lake Park will hold a Special Election for
the Town Commission seats for Mayor.
The qualifying period for candidacy for
Mayor wil l open promptly at 12:00
noon Monday, May 9, 2011, and close
promptly at 12:00 noon Friday, May 20,
2011. Please contact Vivian Lemley,
CMC, Town Clerk, at 561-881-3311 for
more information.

Any person wishing to become a regis-
tered voter can complete an applica-
tion form which can be obtained at the
Lake Park Town Hall and mailed to the
County Supervisor of Elections, before
the registration books close (Tuesday,
May 31, 2011). Once registered, Voter
Regis t ra t ion cards are mai led and
reflect each voter's precinct and polling
place for all elections.

The Limited Voting Method.
Each regis tered voter wi l l have the
opportunity to cast one vote for the
Mayor candidate of choice for a three
(3) year term. The candidate receiving
the most amount of votes will become
the Town's Mayor for the next three (3)
years.

PUB: The Palm Beach Post
May 5, 2011

Notice Under Fictitious Name Law
Pursuant to Section 865.09,

Florida Statutes
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the
undersigned, desiring to engage in
business under the fictitious name of
Obsessive Compulsive Design Body n
Chassis located at 1640 SW Buttercup
Ave, in the County of St. Lucie, in the
City of Port St. Lucie, Florida 34953
intends to register the said name with
the Division of Corporations of the
Florida Department of State, Tallahas-
see, Florida.

Dated at West Palm Beach, Florida this
4th day of May, 2011.

Tracy Pearsall
PUB: The Palm Beach Post

Notice Under Fictitious Name Law
Pursuant to Section 865.09,

Florida Statutes
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the
undersigned, desiring to engage in
business under the fictitious name of
THE GLIDE PRESS located at 2234
North Federal Highway, #438, in the
County of Palm Beach, in the City of
Boca Raton, Florida 33431 intends to
register the said name with the Divi-
sion of Corporations of the Florida
Department of State, Tal lahassee,
Florida.

Dated at West Palm Beach, Florida this
2nd day of May, 2011.

Bethe Lee Moulton
PUB: The Palm Beach Post

Notice Under Fictitious Name Law
Pursuant to Section 865.09,

Florida Statutes
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the
undersigned, desiring to engage in
business under the fictitious name of
Dollar Tree # 4581 located at 1136
Royal Palm Beach Blvd., in the County
of Palm Beach, in the City of Royal
Palm Beach, Florida 33411 intends to
register the said name with the Divi-
sion of Corporations of the Florida
Department of State, Tal lahassee,
Florida.

Dated at West Palm Beach, Florida this
3rd day of April, 2011.

Dollar Tree Stores, Inc.
PUB: The Palm Beach Post

Notice Under Fictitious Name Law
Pursuant to Section 865.09,

Florida Statutes
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the
undersigned, desiring to engage in
business under the fictitious name of
Diane’s located at 515 1/2 Northwood
Rd, in the County of Palm Beach, in the
City of West Palm Beach, Florida 33407
intends to register the said name with
the Division of Corporations of the
Florida Department of State, Tallahas-
see, Florida.

Dated at West Palm Beach, Florida this
3rd day of May, 2011.

Diane B. McKinnie
PUB: The Palm Beach Post

NO. 6008282
The following vehicle will be sold at pub-
lic auction on May 25, 2011 at 749 N.W.
Avenue L., Belle Glade, FL 33430 at
Affordable Towing at 8:00 a.m.:

2006 Pontiac 4 dr
2G2WP552261251293
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
May 5, 2011

NO. 6008632
PUBLIC NOTICE

SPECIAL EXCEPTION APPLICATION,
SE-11-01, AMBROSIA OF THE PALM

BEACHES, 2675 LAKE DRIVE,
CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA

The Planning & Zoning Board will con-
duct a meeting on Thursday, May 12,
2010 at 6:30 PM or soon thereafter,
and from time to time thereafter as
necessary, in the Council Chambers at
the Municipal Complex, 600 West Blue
Heron Blvd., Riviera Beach, to review
Special Exception application, SE-11-01,
submitted by Ambrosia of the Palm
Beaches , for a fu l l t ime res ident ia l
housing facility including residential
substance abuse treatment services at
2675 Lake Drive, supplementary to their
office and substance abuse treatment
center located at 2626 Lake Drive.

Background material is avai lable for
review in its entirety in the Community
Development Department between the
hours of 8:30 AM and 5:00 PM, except
holidays.

P L E A S E T A K E N O T I C E A N D B E
ADVISED, that if any interested person
desires to appeal any decision made by
the Board or Council with respect to
any matter considered at the meetings,
s u c h i n t e r e s t e d p e r s o n , a t o w n
expense, will need a record of the pro-
ceedings, and for such purpose may
need to ensure that a verbatim record
of the proceedings is made, which
record includes the testimony and evi-
dence upon which the appeal is to be
based.

In accordance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, persons need-
ing special accommodations to partici-
pate in the proceedings should contact
the Legislative Aide at 561-845-4095 no
later than 96 hours prior to the proce-
edings. If hearing impaired, telephone
the Florida Relay Services 1-800-955-
8771 (TDD) or 1-800-955-8770 (Voice)
for assistance.

PUB: The Palm Beach Post
May 5, 2010

NO. 6008459
PUBLIC NOTICE

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
FOR

TEMPORARY POLITICAL SIGNAGE
CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA

The Planning & Zoning Board will con-
duct a meeting on Thursday, May 12,
2010 at 6:30 PM or soon thereafter,
and from time to time thereafter as
necessary, in the Council Chambers at
the Municipal Complex, 600 West Blue
Heron Blvd., Riviera Beach, to review
new regulations and requirements for
temporary political signage.

Background material is avai lable for
review in its entirety in the Community
Development Department between the
hours of 8:30 AM and 5:00 PM, except
holidays.

P L E A S E T A K E N O T I C E A N D B E
ADVISED, that if any interested person
desires to appeal any decision made by
the Board or Council with respect to
any matter considered at the meetings,
s u c h i n t e r e s t e d p e r s o n , a t o w n
expense, will need a record of the pro-
ceedings, and for such purpose may
need to ensure that a verbatim record
of the proceedings is made, which
record includes the testimony and evi-
dence upon which the appeal is to be
based.

In accordance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, persons need-
ing special accommodations to partici-
pate in the proceedings should contact
the Legislative Aide at 561-845-4095 no
later than 96 hours prior to the pro-
ceedings. If hearing impaired, tele-
phone the Florida Relay Services 1-
800-955-8771 (TDD) or 1-800-955-8770
(Voice) for assistance.

PUB: The Palm Beach Post
May 5, 2010

notification to the District's Office at
15600 Jupiter Farms Road, Jupiter,
Florida 33478. One (1) supervisor will
be elected for a term of three (3) years.
The landowner may or may not reside in
the District. All candidates must own
land in the District and must be resi-
dents of Palm Beach County. Notifica-
t ion must be sent to Greta Rayman
prior to 4:30 p.m. on June 13, 2011. It
will be necessary for each candidate to
submit a short informational paragraph
which will be provided to the landown-
ers. The Annual Landowners Meeting is
scheduled for September 15, 2011 at
7:30 p.m. at the Jupiter High School,
500 N. Military Trail, Jupiter, Florida.

DATED this 1st day of May 2011.
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
SOUTH INDIAN RIVER WATER
CONTROL DISTRICT
By: Thomas H. Powell, President
South Indian River Water Control District
15600 Jupiter Farms Road
Jupiter, FL 33478
Tel: (561)747-0550
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
May 5, & 12, 2011

NO. 5992474
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE 15TH

JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

CIVIL DIVISION
CASE NO. 50-2010-CA-014934

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, AS
S U C C E S S O R T R U S T E E U N D E R
NOVASTAR MORTGAGE FUNDING
TRUST, SERIES 2005-2

Plaintiff,
vs.
ROBERT J. TREMBLAY; TONI M. TREM-
BLAY; BANKATLANTIC; BELLA TERRA
COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC.;
UNKNOWN PERSON(S) IN POSSES-
SION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY;

Defendants.
RE-NOTICE OF FORECLOSURE SALE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to
an Order Rescheduling Foreclosure Sale
dated April 13, 2011, and entered in
Case No. 50-2010-CA-014934, of the
Circuit Court of the 15th Judicial Cir-
cuit in and for PALM BEACH County,
Flor ida. THE BANK OF NEW YORK
MELLON, AS SUCCESSOR TRUSTEE
U N D E R N O V A S T A R M O R T G A G E
FUNDING TRUST, SERIES 2005-2 is
Plaintiff and ROBERT J. TREMBLAY;
TONI M. TREMBLAY; UNKNOWN
PERSON(S) IN POSSESSION OF THE
SUBJECT PROPERTY; BANKATLAN-
T I C ; B E L L A T E R R A C O M M U N I T Y
ASSOCIATION, INC.; are defendants.
The Clerk of Court will sell to the high-
est and best bidder for cash by elec-
tronic sale at: www.mypalmbeachclerk.
clerkauction.com, at 10:00 a.m., on the
13 day of July, 2011, the fol lowing
described property as set forth in said
Final Judgment, to wit:

LOT 80, BELLA TERRA P.U.D. PLAT NO.
3 , A C C O R D I N G T O T H E P L A T
THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT
BOOK 96, PAGE 144, OF THE PUBLIC
RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA.

A person claiming an interest in the sur-
plus from the sale, if any, other than the
property owner as of the date of the lis
pendens must file a claim with 60 days
after the sale.

Dated this 26 day of April, 2011.
Deanne Torres, Esq.
Bar. No.: 12190
This not ice is prov ided pursuant to
Administrative Order 2-207-6/10 "If you
are a person with a disability who needs
any accommodation in order to partici-
p a n t i n t h i s p r o c e e d i n g , y o u a r e
entitled, at no cost to you, to the provi-
sion of certain assistance. Please con-
tact Krista Garber, Americans with Dis-
abilities Act Coordinator, Palm Beach
County Courthouse, 205 North Dixie
Highway West Palm Beach, Flor ida
33401; telephone number (561) 355-
4380 at least 7 days before your sched-
uled court appearance, or immediately
upon receiving this notification if the
time before the scheduled appearance
is less than 7 days; if you are hearing or
voice impaired, call 711."

Submitted by:
Kahane & Associates, P.A.
8201 Peters Road, Ste.3000
Plantation, FL 33324
Telephone: (954) 382-3486
Telefacsimile: (954) 382-5380
KA#10-10499
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
April 28, & May 5, 2011

NO. 5992426
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE 15TH

JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

CIVIL DIVISION
CASE NO.

50-2008-CA-034178-XXXX-MB
INDYMAC FEDERAL BANK, FSB, SUC-
CESSOR IN INTEREST TO INDYMAC
BANK, F.S.B.

Plaintiff,
vs.
M A T T H E W S A L T Z B E R G ; L I S A
SALTZBERG; NAUTICA ISLES WEST
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.;
UNKNOWN PERSON(S) IN POSSES-
SION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY;

Defendants.
RE-NOTICE OF FORECLOSURE SALE
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to
an Order Rescheduling Foreclosure Sale
dated February 15, 2011, and entered
in Case No. 50-2008-CA-034178-XXXX-
MB, of the Circuit Court of the 15th
Judicial Circuit in and for PALM BEACH
County, Florida. INDYMAC FEDERAL
BANK, FSB, SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST
TO INDYMAC BANK, F.S.B. is Plaintiff
and MATTHEW SALTZBERG; LISA
SALTZBERG; UNKNOWN PERSON(S)
IN POSSESSION OF THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY; NAUTICA ISLES WEST
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.;
are defendants. The Clerk of Court will
sell to the highest and best bidder for
cash by electronic sale at: www.my
palmbeachclerk.clerkauction.com, at
10:00 a.m., on the 15 day of June,
2011, the following described property
as set forth in said Final Judgment, to
wit:

LOT 19, NAUTICA ISLES WEST- PLAT
O N E , A C C O R D I N G T O T H E P L A T
THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK
9 4 , P A G E 1 6 6 , O F T H E P U B L I C
RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA.

A person claiming an interest in the sur-
plus from the sale, if any, other than the
property owner as of the date of the lis
pendens must file a claim with 60 days
after the sale.

Dated this 26 day of April, 2011.
Eric Knopp, Esq.
Bar. No.: 709921
This not ice is prov ided pursuant to
Administrative Order 2-207-6/10 "If you
are a person with a disability who needs
any accommodation in order to partici-
p a n t i n t h i s p r o c e e d i n g , y o u a r e
entitled, at no cost to you, to the provi-
sion of certain assistance. Please con-
tact Krista Garber, Americans with Dis-
abilities Act Coordinator, Palm Beach
County Courthouse, 205 North Dixie
Highway West Palm Beach, Flor ida
33401; telephone number (561) 355-
4380 at least 7 days before your sched-
uled court appearance, or immediately
upon receiving this notification if the
time before the scheduled appearance
is less than 7 days; if you are hearing or
voice impaired, call 711."

Submitted by:
Kahane & Associates, P.A.
8201 Peters Road, Ste.3000
Plantation, FL 33324
Telephone: (954) 382-3486
Telefacsimile: (954) 382-5380
KA#08-08340
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
April 28, & May 5, 2011

NO. 5992391
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE 15TH

JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

CIVIL DIVISION
CASE NO. 50 2010 CA 013284 XXXX

MB AW
BANKUNITED
Plaintiff,
vs.
D A R Y L L A . D O B S O N ; U N K N O W N
SPOUSE OF DARYLL A. DOBSON;
ELLEN DOBSON; PARADISE PALMS
PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION,
INC.; UNKNOWN PERSON(S) IN POS-
SESSION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY;

Defendants.
NOTICE OF FORECLOSURE SALE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to a
Final Judgment of Foreclosure dated
March 31, 2011, and entered in Case
No. 50 2010 CA 013284 XXXX MB AW,
of the Circuit Court of the 15th Judicial
Circuit in and for PALM BEACH County,
Florida. BANKUNITED is Plaintiff and
DARYLL A. DOBSON; UNKNOWN
SPOUSE OF DARYLL A. DOBSON;
ELLEN DOBSON; UNKNOWN PER-
SON(S) IN POSSESSION OF THE SUB-
JECT PROPERTY; PARADISE PALMS
PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION,
INC.; are defendants. The Clerk of
Court will sell to the highest and best
bidder for cash by electronic sale at:
www.mypalmbeachclerk.clerkauction.
com, at 10:00 a.m., on the 16 day of
May, 2011, the fol lowing described
proper ty as set for th in sa id F ina l
Judgment, to wit:

LOT 10, BLOCK 5, PARADISE PALMS
UNIT 3, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT
THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT
BOOK 27,PAGE 155, OF THE PUBLIC
RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA.

A person claiming an interest in the sur-
plus from the sale, if any, other than the
property owner as of the date of the lis
pendens must file a claim with 60 days
after the sale.

Dated this 26 day of April, 2011.
Clive M. Ryan, Esq.
Bar. No.: 388955
This not ice is prov ided pursuant to
Administrative Order 2-207-6/10 "If you
are a person with a disability who needs
any accommodation in order to partici-
p a n t i n t h i s p r o c e e d i n g , y o u a r e
entitled, at no cost to you, to the provi-
sion of certain assistance. Please con-
tact Krista Garber, Americans with Dis-
abilities Act Coordinator, Palm Beach
County Courthouse, 205 North Dixie
Highway West Palm Beach, Flor ida

County Courthouse, 205 North Dixie
Highway West Palm Beach, Flor ida
33401; telephone number (561) 355-
4380 at least 7 days before your sched-
uled court appearance, or immediately
upon receiving this notification if the
time before the scheduled appearance
is less than 7 days; if you are hearing or
voice impaired, call 711."

Submitted by:
Kahane & Associates, P.A.
8201 Peters Road, Ste.3000
Plantation, FL 33324
Telephone: (954) 382-3486
Telefacsimile: (954) 382-5380
KA#10-09537
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
April 28, & May 5, 2011

NO. 5992329
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE 15TH

JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

CIVIL DIVISION
CASE NO. 502010CA027011XXXXMB

AW
BANKUNITED
Plaintiff,
vs.
KIMBERLY CAMEJO; CELS CAMEJO;
UNKNOWN PERSON(S) IN POSSES-
SION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY;

Defendants.
NOTICE OF FORECLOSURE SALE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to a
Final Judgment of Foreclosure dated
March 31, 2011, and entered in Case
No. 502010CA027011XXXXMB AW, of
the Circuit Court of the 15th Judicial
Circuit in and for PALM BEACH County,
Florida. BANKUNITED is Plaintiff and
KIMBERLY CAMEJO; CELS CAMEJO;
UNKNOWN PERSON(S) IN POSSES-
SION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY;
are defendants. The Clerk of Court will
sell to the highest and best bidder for
cash by electronic sale at: www.my
palmbeachclerk.clerkauction.com, at
10:00 a.m., on the 16 day of May, 2011,
the following described property as set
forth in said Final Judgment, to wit:

WEST 41 FEET OF LOT 9, AND THE
EAST 12 FEET OF LOT 10, BLOCK 26,
O F R E P L A T O F T H A T P A R T O F
BLOCKS 24 TO 28 INCLUSIVE, UNIT
N O . 1 S I T U A T E D I N S E C T I O N 3 ,
TOWNSHIP 45 SOUTH, RANGE 43
EAST, GREYNOLDS HIGHLANDS, LAN-
TANA, FLORIDA, ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT
BOOK 23, PAGE 155 OF THE PUBLIC
RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY
FLORIDA.

A person claiming an interest in the sur-
plus from the sale, if any, other than the
property owner as of the date of the lis
pendens must file a claim with 60 days
after the sale.

Dated this 26 day of April, 2011.
Clive M. Ryan, Esq.
Bar. No.: 388955
This not ice is prov ided pursuant to
Administrative Order 2-207-6/10 "If you
are a person with a disability who needs
any accommodation in order to partici-
p a n t i n t h i s p r o c e e d i n g , y o u a r e
entitled, at no cost to you, to the provi-
sion of certain assistance. Please con-
tact Krista Garber, Americans with Dis-
abilities Act Coordinator, Palm Beach
County Courthouse, 205 North Dixie
Highway West Palm Beach, Flor ida
33401; telephone number (561) 355-
4380 at least 7 days before your sched-
uled court appearance, or immediately
upon receiving this notification if the
time before the scheduled appearance
is less than 7 days; if you are hearing or
voice impaired, call 711."

Submitted by:
Kahane & Associates, P.A.
8201 Peters Road, Ste.3000
Plantation, FL 33324
Telephone: (954) 382-3486
Telefacsimile: (954) 382-5380
KA#10-15315
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
April 28, & May 5, 2011

NO. 5992362
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE 15TH

JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

CIVIL DIVISION
CASE NO. 502010CA006735XXXXMB

AW
BANKUNITED
Plaintiff,
vs.
KATHLEEN CROCKER; JEAN PAUL
VEZIER; SUNTRUST BANK; UNKNOWN
PERSON(S) IN POSSESSION OF THE
SUBJECT PROPERTY;

Defendants.
NOTICE OF FORECLOSURE SALE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to a
Final Judgment of Foreclosure dated
March 31, 2011, and entered in Case
No. 502010CA006735XXXXMB AW, of
the Circuit Court of the 15th Judicial
Circuit in and for PALM BEACH County,
Florida. BANKUNITED is Plaintiff and
KATHLEEN CROCKER; JEAN PAUL
VEZIER; UNKNOWN PERSON(S) IN
POSSESSION OF THE SUBJECT PROP-
ERTY; SUNTRUST BANK; are defen-
dants. The Clerk of Court will sell to
the highest and best bidder for cash by
electronic sale at: www.mypalmbeach
clerk.clerkauction.com, at 10:00 a.m.,
on the 16 day of May, 2011, the fol-
lowing described property as set forth
in said Final Judgment, to wit:

WEST 16.75 FEET OF THE EAST 77.33
FEET OF LOT 1, SEESTEDT-STEVENS
SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN
PLAT BOOK 18, PAGE 3, OF THE PUB-
L I C R E C O R D S O F P A L M B E A C H
COUNTY, FLORIDA.

A person claiming an interest in the sur-
plus from the sale, if any, other than the
property owner as of the date of the lis
pendens must file a claim with 60 days
after the sale.

Dated this 26 day of April, 2011.
Clive M. Ryan, Esq.
Bar. No.: 388955
This not ice is prov ided pursuant to
Administrative Order 2-207-6/10 "If you
are a person with a disability who needs
any accommodation in order to partici-
p a n t i n t h i s p r o c e e d i n g , y o u a r e
entitled, at no cost to you, to the provi-
sion of certain assistance. Please con-
tact Krista Garber, Americans with Dis-
abilities Act Coordinator, Palm Beach
County Courthouse, 205 North Dixie
Highway West Palm Beach, Flor ida
33401; telephone number (561) 355-
4380 at least 7 days before your sched-
uled court appearance, or immediately
upon receiving this notification if the
time before the scheduled appearance
is less than 7 days; if you are hearing or
voice impaired, call 711."

Submitted by:
Kahane & Associates, P.A.
8201 Peters Road, Ste.3000
Plantation, FL 33324
Telephone: (954) 382-3486
Telefacsimile: (954) 382-5380
KA#09-26257
09-26257
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
April 28, & May 5, 2011

NO. 5992205
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA

CASE NO.
502007CA015480XXXXMBAW

DEUTSCHE BANK NATIONAL TRUST
COMPANY, AS TRUSTEE HSI ASSET
SECURIT IZAT ION CORPORATION
TRUST 2006-HE2,

Plaintiff(s),
vs.
JASON K LEONE A/K/A JASON LEONE;
et al.,

Defendant(s).
NOTICE OF FORECLOSURE SALE

PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 45
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Sale will
be made pursuant to an Order or Final
Summary Judgment. Final Judgment
was awarded on July 12, 2010 in Civil
Case No.: 502007CA015480XXXXM-
BAW, of the Circuit Court of the Fif-
teenth Judicial Circuit in and for Palm
Beach County, Florida, wherein, DEUT-
SCHE BANK NATIONAL TRUST COM-
PANY, AS TRUSTEE HSI ASSET SECU-
RITIZATION CORPORATION TRUST
2006-HE2 is the Plaintiff, and, JASON K
L E O N E A / K / A J A S O N L E O N E ;
UNKNOWN SPOUSE OF JASON K
LEONE A/K/A JASON LEONE; IF ANY; ,
CITYSIDE CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIA-
TION, INC; MORTGAGE ELECTRONIC
REGISTRATION SYSTEMS, INC.; AND
UNKNOWN TENANT(S) IN POSSES-
SION are Defendants.

The clerk of the court wil l sell to the
h ighes t b idde r fo r ca sh on l i ne a t
www.mypalmbeachclerk.clerkauction.
com, at 10:00 AM on May 31, 2011, the
following described real property as set
forth in said Final Summary Judgment,
to wit:

Unit no. 5 building 19C, of Cityside, a
Condominium, according to the decla-
ration of condominium thereof, as
recorded in off ic ia l records book
18734, at page 669, of the public
records of palm beach county, Florida,
together with an undivided interest in
the common elements appurtenant
thereto and all amendments thereto as
set forth in said declaration.

ANY PERSON CLAIMING AN INTEREST
IN THE SURPLUS FROM THE SALE, IF
ANY, OTHER THAN THE PROPERTY
OWNER AS OF THE DATE OF THE LIS
PENDENS MUST FILE A CLAIM WITHIN
60 DAYS AFTER THE SALE.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Sharon R. Bock

CLERK OF THE COURT: Sharon R. Bock
Aldridge Connors, LLP
Attorney for Plaintiff(s)
7000 W. Palmetto Park Rd., Suite 307
Boca Raton, FL 33433
Phone: 561.392.6391 Fax: 561.392.6965
BY: Debbie Satyal
Fla. Bar 70531
1113-524
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
April 28, & May 5, 2011

NO. 5992235
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA

CASE NO. 502009CA034493XXXXMB
DEUTSCHE BANK NATIONAL TRUST
C O M P A N Y A S T R U S T E E F O R M S
2005-11AR,

PLAINTIFF(S),
VS.
JOSEPH GRENADIER; ET AL.,
DEFENDANT(S).

NOTICE OF FORECLOSURE SALE
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 45

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Sale will
be made pursuant to an Order or Final
Summary Judgment. Final Judgment
was awarded on June 16, 2010 in Civil
Case No: 2009CA034493XXXXMB, of
the Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judi-
c ia l C i rcu i t in and for Pa lm Beach
County, Florida, wherein, DEUTSCHE
BANK NATIONAL TRUST COMPANY
AS TRUSTEE FOR MS 2005-11AR is the
Plaintiff, and, JOSEPH GRENADIER;
B E R N A D E T T E G R E N A D I E R , J & M
B U I L D I N G A N D R E S T O R A T I O N
INCORPORATED; NATIONAL BRICK
PAVER CORPORATION; WACHOVIA
BANK NAT IONAL ASSOCIAT ION;
BARR TERRACE INCORPORATED;
BR ICKAMERICA INCORPORATED;
AND UNKNOWN TENANT(S) IN POS-
SESSION are Defendants.

The clerk of the court wil l sell to the
h ighes t b idde r fo r ca sh on l i ne a t
www.mypalmbeachclerk.clerkauction.
com, at 10:00 AM on May 31, 2011, the
following described real property as set
forth in said Final Summary Judgment,
to wit:

Condo parcel No 6-F of the Barr Ter-
race A condominium according to the
declaration of Condominium thereof
recorded in official record book 1779
page 503 as amended from time to
time of the public records of Palm
Beach County Florida

ANY PERSON CLAIMING AN INTEREST
IN THE SURPLUS FROM THE SALE, IF
ANY, OTHER THAN THE PROPERTY
OWNER AS OF THE DATE OF THE LIS
PENDENS MUST FILE A CLAIM WITHIN
60 DAYS AFTER THE SALE.

Sharon R. Bock, Clerk
Aldridge Connors, LLP
Attorney for Plaintiff(s)
7000 W. Palmetto Park Rd., Suite 307
Boca Raton, FL 33433
Phone: 561.392.6391 Fax: 561.392.6965
BY: Debbie Satyal
Fla. Bar 70531
1113-5057
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
April 28, & May 5, 2011

NO. 5992247
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA

CASE NO. 2008-CA-025494
US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION AS
TRUSTEE,

Plaintiff(s),
vs.
PRENEL THEOPHILE; et al.,
Defendant(s).

NOTICE OF FORECLOSURE SALE
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 45

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Sale will
be made pursuant to an Order or Final
Summary Judgment. Final Judgment
was awarded on October 26, 2010 in
Civil Case No.: 2008-CA-025494, of the
Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judicial
Circuit in and for Palm Beach County,
Florida, wherein, US BANK NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION AS TRUSTEE is the
Plaint i f f , and, PRENEL THEOPHILE,
U N K N O W N S P O U S E O F P R E N E L
T H E O P H I L E I F A N Y ; S H E R W O O D
LAKES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION;
STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF

NO. 5993188
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.:
9:10-cv-80955-HURLEY/HOPKINS

JEFFREY C. SCHNEIDER, not individu-
ally but solely in his capacity as Receiver
for TRADE-LLC, BD LLC, TWTT-LLC,
C M J C A P I T A L L L C , a n d C E N T E R
RICHMOND LLC,

Plaintiff,
v.
WILLIAM JORDAN,
Defendant.

NOTICE OF ACTION
This notice is published to effect service
of process on Defendant William Jor-
dan ("Jordan") pursuant to Fla. Stat. §§
49.011, 49 .021, 49 .08 , 49 .09 , and
49.10. This is an action by Jeffrey C.
Schneider, not individually, but solely in
his capacity as the court-appointed
receiver (the "Receiver") for Trade-LLC,
BD LLC, TWTT-LLC, CMJ Capital LLC,
and Center Richmond LLC (the "Receiv-
ership Entities" or "Trade-LLC") for
fraudulent transfer, conversion, and

NO. 6000544
Westgate Plaza Apartments

Request for Quotations
W e s t g a t e P l a z a A p a r t m e n t s
("Westgate"), a new construction 80
unit multi-family project to be located
on the south side of Okeechobee Road,
approx. 340 feet west of Quail Drive, in
Palm Beach County is seeking qualified
parties to provide quotations for con-
tract design services including but not
l imited to architectural , structural ,
mechanical, electrical, plumbing and
engineering design as well as surveying
and LEED consulting. All interested
parties are to be aware that Westgate is
governed by the regulations set forth in
Section 3 of the Housing and Urban
Development Act of 1968 and those
businesses that qualify as a Section 3
Business Concern (as defined in 24 CFR
Part 135.5) will be given preference.
Among other factors to be considered
include relevant exper ience, back-
ground, trade references and capacity.

Quotations and qualifications must be
submitted along with proof of compli-
ance with Section 3 requirements, bid
qualifications and company experience
information.

To obtain bid information, please email
your contact information to Justin Gil-
bert by Friday May 6th at 5PM at jus-
tin@landmarkco.net. Mr. Gilbert can
also be reached by telephone at (305)
538-9552, x111.

PUB: The Palm Beach Post
May 1 - 6, 2011

NO. 5978569
Galaxy Elementary School

Modernization
Phase I - Advertisement

Pirtle Construction Company is currently
soliciting subcontractors and suppliers
to pre-qualify to bid on the Phase I -
Demolition and Site Preparation por-
tion of the Galaxy Elementary Modern-
ization Project located at 301 Galaxy
Way in Boynton Beach, Florida. Subcon-
tractors and suppliers must be pre-
qualified before they will be issued bid-
d ing documents . The Bid Date for
Phase I of this project is anticipated to
be May 12, 2011. Pirtle Construction
encourages participation by SBE certi-
f ied subcontractors and suppl iers .
P l e a s e v i s i t o u r w e b s i t e a t
http://www.pirtleconstruction.com/com
pany/prequalification.aspx for pre-quali-
fication information and forms.

PUB: The Palm Beach Post
April 21, 28 & May 5, 2011

NO. 6008345
The following vehicle will be sold at pub-
lic auction on May 20, 2011 at 749 N.W.
Avenue L., Belle Glade, FL 33430 at
Affordable Towing at 8:00 a.m.:

1994 Nissan
JN1HJ01F9RT211246
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
May 5, 2011

NO. 6006862
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA

CASE NO. 50-2008-CA-025411
US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION AS
T R U S T E E F O R T H E S T R U C T R U E D
ASSET SECURITIES CORPORATION
MORTGAGE PASS THROUGH CER-
TIFICATES, 2006-EQ1,

Plaintiff(s),
vs.
MICHELLE D DEROSA; et al.,
Defendant(s).

NOTICE OF FORECLOSURE SALE
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 45

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Sale will
be made pursuant to an Order or Final
Summary Judgment. Final Judgment
was awarded on August 20, 2010 in
Civil Case No.: 50-2008-CA-025411, of
the Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judi-
c ia l C i rcu i t in and for Pa lm Beach
County, Florida, wherein, US BANK
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION AS TRUSTEE
FOR THE STRUCTRUED ASSET SECU-
RITIES CORPORATION MORTGAGE
P A S S T H R O U G H C E R T I F I C A T E S ,
2 0 0 6 - E Q 1 i s t h e P l a i n t i f f , a n d ,
MICHELLE D DEROSA, UNKNOWN
SPOUSE OF MICHELLE D DEROSA IF
ANY; THE FOREST CONDOMINIUM,
INC. NO. 1; THE FOREST MASTER
CONDOMINIUM, INC; JOHN DOE
N / K / A G E R A L D S I B E E ; A N D
UNKNOWN TENANT(S) IN POSSES-
SION are Defendants.

The clerk of the court wil l sell to the
h ighes t b idde r fo r ca sh on l i ne a t
www.mypalmbeachclerk.clerkauction.
com, at 10:00 AM on June 06, 2011,
the following described real property as
set forth in said Final Summary Judg-
ment, to wit:

Unit No. D, Building No. 21, of the For-
est Condominium 1, A condominium
according to the Declaration of Con-
dominium thereof, as recorded in Offi-
cial Records Book 2354, Page 1258, and
any amendments thereto, of the Public
Records of Palm Beach County, Florida,
together with the undivided share or
interest in the common elements appur-
tenant thereto.

ANY PERSON CLAIMING AN INTEREST
IN THE SURPLUS FROM THE SALE, IF
ANY, OTHER THAN THE PROPERTY
OWNER AS OF THE DATE OF THE LIS
PENDENS MUST FILE A CLAIM WITHIN
60 DAYS AFTER THE SALE.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Sharon R. Bock
Aldridge Connors, LLP
Attorney for Plaintiff(s)
7000 W. Palmetto Park Rd., Suite 307
Boca Raton, FL 33433
Phone: 561.392.6391 Fax: 561.392.6965
BY: Debbie Satyal
Fla. Bar 70531
1113-2116
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
May 5, & 12, 2011

NO. 6007313
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA

CASE NO.
502007CA007212XXXXMBAW

GMAC MORTGAGE, LLC,
Plaintiff(s),
vs.
RINALDO MERONE; et al.,
Defendant(s).

NOTICE OF FORECLOSURE SALE
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 45

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Sale will
be made pursuant to an Order or Final
Summary Judgment. Final Judgment
was awarded on July 06, 2010 in Civil
Case No. : 502007CA007212XXXX-
MBAW, of the Circuit Court of the Fif-
teenth Judicial Circuit in and for Palm
Beach County, Florida, wherein, GMAC
MORTGAGE, LLC is the Plaintiff, and,
R I N A L D O M E R O N E , U N K N O W N
SPOUSE OF RINALDO MERONE IF
ANY; THE PINES OF DELRAY NORTH
A S S O C I A T I O N , I N C . ; J O H N D O E
N / K / A F R A N K D A N C I ; A N D
UNKNOWN TENANT(S) IN POSSES-
SION are Defendants.

The clerk of the court wil l sell to the
h ighes t b idde r fo r ca sh on l i ne a t
www.mypalmbeachclerk.clerkauction.
com, at 10:00 AM on June 07, 2011,
the following described real property as
set forth in said Final Summary Judg-
ment, to wit:

CONDOMINIUM UNIT NO. 203, IN
BUILDING 94, OF THE PINES OF DEL-
RAY NORTH 6, A CONDOMINIUM,
ACCORDING TO THE DECLARATION
THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN OFFI-
CIAL RECORDS BOOK 3232, AT PAGE
436, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

ANY PERSON CLAIMING AN INTEREST
IN THE SURPLUS FROM THE SALE, IF
ANY, OTHER THAN THE PROPERTY
OWNER AS OF THE DATE OF THE LIS
PENDENS MUST FILE A CLAIM WITHIN
60 DAYS AFTER THE SALE.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Sharon R. Bock
Aldridge Connors, LLP
Attorney for Plaintiff(s)
7000 W. Palmetto Park Rd., Suite 307
Boca Raton, FL 33433
Phone: 561.392.6391 Fax: 561.392.6965
BY: Debbie Satyal
Fla. Bar 70531
1113-270
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
May 5, & 12, 2011

LAKES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION;
STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF
R E V E N U E ; A N D U N K N O W N
TENANT(S) IN POSSESSION are Defen-
dants.

The clerk of the court wil l sell to the
h ighes t b idde r fo r ca sh on l i ne a t
www.mypalmbeachclerk.clerkauction.
com, at 10:00 AM on May 31, 2011, the
following described real property as set
forth in said Final Summary Judgment,
to wit:

Unit "B", Lot 116, Plat of Sherwood
Lakes, P.U.D.. Plat No. 2, according to
the recorded in plat book 41, page
134, as recorded in the public records
of Palm Beach County Florida; Said
Land Situate, Lying and being in Palm
Beach County Florida

ANY PERSON CLAIMING AN INTEREST
IN THE SURPLUS FROM THE SALE, IF
ANY, OTHER THAN THE PROPERTY
OWNER AS OF THE DATE OF THE LIS
PENDENS MUST FILE A CLAIM WITHIN
60 DAYS AFTER THE SALE.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Sharon R. Bock
Aldridge Connors, LLP
Attorney for Plaintiff(s)
7000 W. Palmetto Park Rd., Suite 307
Boca Raton, FL 33433
Phone: 561.392.6391 Fax: 561.392.6965
BY: Debbie Satyal
Fla. Bar 70531
1113-657
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
April 28, & May 5, 2011

NO. 6007318
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA

CASE NO. 50-2009-CA-025221
FLAGSTAR BANK, FSB,
Plaintiff(s),
vs.
GEOFFERY S. PARK; et al.,
Defendant(s).

NOTICE OF FORECLOSURE SALE
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 45

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Sale will
be made pursuant to an Order or Final
Summary Judgment. Final Judgment
was awarded on August 13, 2010 in
Civil Case No.: 50-2009-CA-025221, of
the Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judi-
c ia l C i rcu i t in and for Pa lm Beach
County, Florida, wherein, FLAGSTAR
BANK, FSB is the Plaintiff, and, GEOF-
FERY S. PARK, UNKNOWN SPOUSE OF
GEOFFERY S. PARK; OCEAN CITY
LOFTS CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIA-
TION INC.; BANK OF AMERICA N.A.;
BRANCH BANKING AND TRUST COM-
PANY; AND UNKNOWN TENANT(S) IN
POSSESSION are Defendants.

The clerk of the court wil l sell to the
h ighes t b idde r fo r ca sh on l i ne a t
www.mypalmbeachclerk.clerkauction.
com, at 10:00 AM on June 06, 2011,
the following described real property as
set forth in said Final Summary Judg-
ment, to wit:

Unit No. 405W, Ocean City Lofts, a
Condominium, according to The Decla-
ration of Condominium recorded in
O.R. Book 18380, Page 688, and all
exhibits and amendments thereof,
Public Records of Palm Beach County,
Florida

ANY PERSON CLAIMING AN INTEREST
IN THE SURPLUS FROM THE SALE, IF
ANY, OTHER THAN THE PROPERTY
OWNER AS OF THE DATE OF THE LIS
PENDENS MUST FILE A CLAIM WITHIN
60 DAYS AFTER THE SALE.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Sharon R. Bock
Aldridge Connors, LLP
Attorney for Plaintiff(s)
7000 W. Palmetto Park Rd., Suite 307
Boca Raton, FL 33433
Phone: 561.392.6391 Fax: 561.392.6965
BY: Debbie Satyal
Fla. Bar 70531
1091-1633
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
May 5, & 12, 2011

NO. 6007315
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA

CASE NO. 502008CA018525XXXXMB
DIVISION AW

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE
CORPORATION,

Plaintiff(s),
vs.
SCOTT P QUALLEY; et al.,
Defendant(s).

NOTICE OF FORECLOSURE SALE
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 45

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Sale will
be made pursuant to an Order or Final
Summary Judgment. Final Judgment
was awarded on July 01, 2010 in Civil
Case No.: 502008CA018525XXXXMB,
of the Circuit Court of the Fifteenth
Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach
County, Florida, wherein, FEDERAL
HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORPORA-
TION is the Plaintiff, and, SCOTT P.
QUALLEY; GINA F. QUALLEY, BANK
OF AMERICA, N.A. ; CRESTWOOD
GLEN COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION,
INC; AND UNKNOWN TENANT(S) IN
POSSESSION are Defendants.

The clerk of the court wil l sell to the
h ighes t b idde r fo r ca sh on l i ne a t
www.mypalmbeachclerk.clerkauction.
com, at 10:00 AM on June 01, 2011,
the following described real property as
set forth in said Final Summary Judg-
ment, to wit:

Lot 84, Crestwood Unit 3 Plat Three,
According to the Plat Thereof, as
Recorded in Plat book 77, Page 171,
of the Public Records of Palm Beach
County, Florida

ANY PERSON CLAIMING AN INTEREST
IN THE SURPLUS FROM THE SALE, IF
ANY, OTHER THAN THE PROPERTY
OWNER AS OF THE DATE OF THE LIS
PENDENS MUST FILE A CLAIM WITHIN
60 DAYS AFTER THE SALE.

CLERK OF THE COURT: Sharon R. Bock
Aldridge Connors, LLP
Attorney for Plaintiff(s)
7000 W. Palmetto Park Rd., Suite 307
Boca Raton, FL 33433
Phone: 561.392.6391 Fax: 561.392.6965
BY: Debbie Satyal
Fla. Bar 70531
1092-1306
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
May 5, & 12, 2011

NO. 6005873
Request for Proposals # 10/11-120
DISASTER DEBRIS REMOVAL AND

DISPOSAL SERVICES
The City of West Palm Beach is soliciting
bids from responsible and qualified con-
tractors for debris removal and dis-
posal services. The successful contrac-
t o r s s h a l l b e r e s p o n s i b l e f o r a n d
provide emergency and non-emer-
gency debris removal and disposal ser-
vices for the City on an as needed basis
which may be before and/or after a
natural disaster.

Time is of the essence and any proposal
received after 3:00 p.m., Thursday, June
2, 2011, whether by mail or otherwise
will be returned unopened. The time of
receipt shall be determined by the time
clock located in the office of the Pro-
curement Official. Proposals shall be
placed in a sealed envelope, marked in
the lower left-hand corner with the RFP
number, title, and date and hour pro-
posals are scheduled to be received.
Respondents are responsible for insur-
ing that their proposal is stamped by
Procurement Division personnel by the
deadline indicated.

Interested parties may obtain a copy of
this proposal by downloading a PDF file
at http://www.wpb.org/procurement or
contacting the Procurement Division at
561-822-2100.

A Proposer shall submit one (1) original,
f ive(5) copies and one (1) electronic
copy (on CD-ROM, in MS Word or
searchable PDF) of the proposal to the
Procurement Division, at the time and
date specified in the legal notice to and
proposals must be delivered or mailed
to:

City of West Palm Beach -
Procurement Division

Donna Levengood, CPPO, FCCN,
Assistant Purchasing Manager
401 Clematis Street, 5th Floor
West Palm Beach, FL 33401

ENVELOPE MUST BE IDENTIFIED AS
R F P 1 0 - 1 1 - 1 2 0 , D i s a s t e r D e b r i s
Removal and Disposal Services. Bids
shall be accompanied by a certif ied
check, cashiers check, or Bid Bond in an
amount not less than 5% of bid.

BY: Donna Levengood, CPPO, FCCN
Assistant Purchasing Manager
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
May 5, 2011

ership Entities" or "Trade-LLC") for
fraudulent transfer, conversion, and
unjust enrichment against Jordan for
funds he improperly received derived
from Trade-LLC. This action was insti-
tuted in the United States District Court
for the Southern District of Florida,
Palm Beach Division before the Honor-
able Daniel T.K. Hurley. The case is
t i t l e d S c h n e i d e r v . J o r d a n , N o . :
9:10-cv-80955-HURLEY/HOPKINS. The
Receiver's counsel is Patrick J. Rengstl,
E s q . B o t h t h e R e c e i v e r ' s a n d h i s
counsel's address is:

Levine Kel logg Lehman Schneider +
Grossman LLP

201 South Biscayne Boulevard
34th Floor, Miami Center
Miami, Florida 33131
Within thirty (30) days of the date this
Notice is first published (i.e., thirty (30)
days of April 28, 2011), which is May 31,
2011, Jordan must file written defenses
with the clerk of the court in which the
case is pending and serve a copy of
such defenses on the Receiver and his
counsel at the address above if Jordan
plans to contest this action.

PUB: The Palm Beach Post
April 28, May 5, 12, & 19, 2011

CLERK OF THE COURT: Sharon R. Bock
Aldridge Connors, LLP
Attorney for Plaintiff(s)
7000 W. Palmetto Park Rd., Suite 307
Boca Raton, FL 33433
Phone: 561.392.6391 Fax: 561.392.6965
BY: Debbie Satyal
Fla. Bar 70531
1113-365
PUB: The Palm Beach Post
May 5 & 12, 2011

legals

8 <pagelabeltag>

8E The Palm Beach Post | PalmBeachPost.com (561) 820-4343 | Thursday, May 5, 2011

P
u

b
lic

at
io

n
 D

at
e:

 
05

/0
5/

20
11

A
d 

N
um

be
r:

 
60

08
63

2A

In
se

rt
io

n 
N

um
be

r:
 

60
08

63
2A

S
iz

e:
 

1 
x 

17

C
ol

or
 T

yp
e:

 
B

&
W

C
lie

nt
 N

am
e:

 

A
dv

er
tis

er
: 

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

IV
IE

R
A

 B
E

A
C

H

S
ec

tio
n/

P
ag

e/
Z

on
e:

 
C

la
ss

if
ie

d
/E

00
8/

T
R

E

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

 
N

O
. 6

00
86

32
P

U
B

L
IC

 N
O

T
IC

E
S

P
E

C
IA

L
 E

X
C

T
h

is
 E

-S
h

ee
t(

R
) 

is
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 a
s 

co
n

cl
u

si
ve

 e
vi

d
en

ce
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
ad

 a
p

p
ea

re
d

 in
 t

h
e 

n
ew

sp
ap

er
 o

n
 t

h
e 

d
at

e 
an

d
 p

ag
e 

in
d

ic
at

ed
. Y

o
u

 m
ay

 n
o

t 
cr

ea
te

 d
er

iv
at

iv
e 

w
o

rk
s 

o
r 

in
 a

n
y 

w
ay

 e
xp

lo
it

 o
r 

re
-p

u
rp

o
se

 a
n

y 
co

n
te

n
t.



 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
SPECIAL EXCEPTION APPLICATION, 

SE-11-01, AMBROSIA OF THE PALM BEACHES, 
2675 LAKE DRIVE, CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA 

 
 
The Planning & Zoning Board will conduct a meeting on Thursday, May 12, 2010 at 
6:30 PM or soon thereafter, and from time to time thereafter as necessary, in the 
Council Chambers at the Municipal Complex, 600 West Blue Heron Blvd., Riviera 
Beach, to review Special Exception application, SE-11-01, submitted by Ambrosia of the 
Palm Beaches, for a fulltime residential housing facility including residential substance 
abuse treatment services at 2675 Lake Drive, supplementary to their office and 
substance abuse treatment center located at 2626 Lake Drive. 
 
Background material is available for review in its entirety in the Community 
Development Department between the hours of 8:30 AM and 5:00 PM, except holidays.  
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE AND BE ADVISED, that if any interested person desires to 
appeal any decision made by the Board or Council with respect to any matter 
considered at the meetings, such interested person, at own expense, will need a 
record of the proceedings, and for such purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim 
record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence 
upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, persons needing 
special accommodations to participate in the proceedings should contact the 
Legislative Aide at 561-845-4095 no later than 96 hours prior to the proceedings.  If 
hearing impaired, telephone the Florida Relay Services 1-800-955-8771 (TDD) or 1-
800-955-8770 (Voice) for assistance. 
 
 
Publish:  May 5, 2010 
Palm Beach Post 
Proof of Publication 
      

 

 

 

 

 



Pa
rk 

Av
e

La
ke

 D
r

Blue Heron Blvd E

Cabana Rd

S Harbor Dr

We
st 

Wa
y

S Harbor Dr

0 270 540135 Feet
Location Map

2675 Lake Drive, SE-11-01
Ambrosia of the Palm Beaches

Data and Map Disclaimer: The Data is provided as is without warranty or any 
representation of accuracy, timeliness or completeness. The burden for 

determining accuracy, completeness, timeliness, merchantability and fitness for 
or the appropriateness for use rests solely on the requester. The City of Riviera 

Beach and Palm Beach County make no warranties, expressed or implied, as to the 
use of the Data. There are no implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for 
a particular purpose. The requester acknowledges and accepts the limitations of 
the Data, including the fact that the Data is dynamic and is in a constant state 

of maintenance, correction, and update.
Data and Map Disclaimer: The Data is provided as is without warranty or any 

representation of accuracy, timeliness or completeness. The burden for 
determining accuracy, completeness, timeliness, merchantability and fitness for 
or the appropriateness for use rests solely on the requester. The City of Riviera 

Beach and Palm Beach County make no warranties, expressed or implied, as to the 
use of the Data. There are no implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for 
a particular purpose. The requester acknowledges and accepts the limitations of 
the Data, including the fact that the Data is dynamic and is in a constant state 

of maintenance, correction, and update.

Roads
Parcels
Subject Area±

Subject Area
2675 Lake Dr. 



 

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH STAFF REPORT 
CASE NUMBER SE-11-01 
MAY 12, 2011 

 
 
AN APPLICATION FROM AMBROSIA OF THE PALM BEACHES REQUESTING A 
SPECIAL EXCEPTION APPROVAL TO OPERATE A FULL-TIME RESIDENTIAL 
HOUSING FACILITY, INCLUDING RESIDENTIAL SUBSTANCE ABUSE 
TREATMENT SERVICES, AT 2675 LAKE DRIVE, WITHIN A MULTIPLE UNIT 
STRUCTURE ON A 0.47 ACRE PARCEL. 
 
 

 
A. Applicant: Ambrosia of the Palm Beaches. 

 
B. Request:  The applicant is requesting a special exception to operate a full-time 

residential housing facility that will include residential substance abuse treatment services 
within the Multiple Family / Hotel (RMH-15) Zoning District. 

 
C. Location:  The proposed location is on the west side of Lake Drive, West of Cabana 

Road on Singer Island (map attached).     
 

D. Property Description and Uses: The subject property description and uses are as 
follows: 

  
 Parcel Control Number:
 

   56-43-42-27-03-001-0040 

Parcel Size:
 

  0.47 acres  

Existing Use:

 

 Two residential structures; an apartment building with 8 units and a 
detached residential structure, currently occupied by the applicant and 
their tenants, typically 20 patients and 2 staff members.  

Current Future Land Use:  High Density Multiple Family Residential 
Proposed Future Land Use

 
: N.A.    

Current Zoning: Multiple Family / Hotel (RMH-15) Zoning District 
Proposed Zoning
 

: N.A. 

E. Adjacent Property Description and Uses:   
 

North:

 

 Vacant Lot; Multiple Family / Hotel (RMH-15) Zoning, High Density        Multiple 
Family Residential Future Land Use. 

South

 

: Multiple Family Residential; Multiple Family / Hotel (RMH-15) Zoning, High 
Density Multiple Family Residential Future Land Use. 

East

 

: Single Family and Multiple Family Residential; Office Professional (OP) and 
Multiple Family Dwelling (RM-15) Zoning Districts, Office and Medium Density Multiple 
Family Residential Future Land Uses . 

West
 

:  Intracoastal Waterway 

 

 



 

 
F. Background:   

 
Staff was initially contacted by Ambrosia of the Palm Beaches (Ambrosia) regarding a 
request for a zoning sign-off from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Program 
Office for a Substance Abuse License.  Prior to agreeing to sign-off on the zoning 
verification sheet, staff contacted the City’s Business Tax Receipt Office to determine if 
Ambrosia had a current and valid Business Tax Receipt (BTR) and Certificate of Use 
(COU).  Staff’s research determined that Ambrosia did have an active BTR and COU, 
however the category stated on the BTR for 2675 Lake Drive was noted as “Drug Abuse 
Counseling”.  Staff had no record of approval of this type of use at this address, which 
would have to be granted via the Special Exception process in the RMH-15 Zoning 
District.  The existing BTR must have been issued by Business Tax Receipt Office staff in 
error.  In order to rectify the situation, staff informed Ambrosia that a final approval for the 
use requested could only be granted by the City Council through the Special Exception 
process.   Ambrosia agreed to abide by any City approval processes required to permit a 
fulltime residential housing facility that would include residential substance abuse 
treatment services.  Shortly thereafter, Ambrosia submitted their official Special Exception 
application to staff, which has been reviewed for compatibility and consistency with the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Regulations.  The following staff 
analysis has been prepared for your review. 
 

G. Staff Analysis:   
  

Proposed Use: The applicant is requesting to operate a full-time residential housing facility 
that will include residential substance abuse treatment services at 2675 Lake Drive.  This 
facility will typically have 20 patients and 2 employees.  

 
Zoning Regulations: This proposed use, a fulltime residential housing facility, that will 
include residential substance abuse treatment services would comply with the City’s Land 
Development Regulations if a Special Exception approval was granted by City Council, in 
the Multiple Family / Hotel (RMH-15) Zoning District. 
 
Comprehensive Plan: The proposed use would be consistent with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan. According to page 14 of the Comp Plan, the High Density Multiple 
Family Residential Future Land Use is “the highest density [residential] category”.   
 
Compatibility:  Staff anticipates that this use proposal shall be compatible with the 
surrounding development.  
 
Levels of Service:  City services such as roads, water, sewer, and garbage collection are 
currently available to the site. 
 
Landscaping:  Staff considers the existing landscaping appropriate and adequate at this 
time.  Landscaping will have to be maintained according to the City’s Land Development 
Code.  
 
Parking/Traffic:  The consulting City Engineer, Mr. Lal Samadi, has expressed concerns 
about the potential of inadequate parking available on site.  There are currently 6 parking 
spaces on site, 1 of which is handicapped parking.  Of the five remaining spaces, two are 
occupied by Ambrosias transport vans and there are two employees on site at all times.  
This leaves one remaining space for visitors and/or maintenance vehicles at this location.  
Ambrosia has stated that patients are not allowed to have vehicles on site and visitors are 
an infrequent occurrence since many patients reside outside of Florida.  Additionally, 



 

Ambrosia infrequently has maintenance vehicles at 2675 Lake Drive; their pool contractor 
visits the location once a week and their landscaper is on site once every two weeks. 

 
H. Special Exception Analysis 

 
a. Ingress to and egress from the property and the proposed structures thereon, if 

any, including such considerations as automotive and pedestrian safety and 
convenience, traffic flow and control, and access in case of fire or catastrophe. 
 

• Ingress and egress to this site are directly off of Lake Drive, there are no additional 
drive areas. 

 
b.   Off-street parking and loading areas, where required, including consideration of 
relevant factors in subsection (2)a. of this section, and the economic, noise, glare 
or odor effects of the location of such areas on adjacent and nearby properties and 
properties generally in the district. 
 
• Existing parking would be considered legal-nonconforming, as the parking area and 

spaces were established prior to new off-street parking regulations. 
  

c.   Refuse and service areas, including consideration of relevant factors in 
subsections (2)a. and b. of this section. 

 
• Refuse generated from this site will be handled with roll-out containers. 

  
d.   Utilities, including such consideration as hook-in locations and availability and 
compatibility of utilities for the proposed use or structure. 
 
• Utilities are currently available and active. 

 
e.   Screening, buffering and landscaping, including consideration of such relevant 
factors as type, dimensions and character to preserve and improve compatibility 
and harmony of use and structures between the proposed special exception and 
the uses and structures of adjacent and nearby properties and properties generally 
in the district. 
 
• Adequate landscaping exists on-site which must be maintained according to the City’s 

Land Development Code. 
 

f.   Signs, or outside displays, if any, and proposed exterior lighting, if any, with 
reference to glare, traffic safety and economic effects of same on properties in the 
district. 
 
• N.A. - No signs are proposed. 

 
g.   Required yards and open spaces. The board shall make such recommendations 
as it deems necessary, guided by the factors that may be described in this zoning 
district, based on the nature of the request and its effect. 
 
• N.A. – Yard area currently exists and is properly maintained according to code. 

 
I. Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board review and 

consider all facts presented within this staff report prior to making a recommendation to 
City Council.  



CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH                        P.O Box 10682                  RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA 33419 
 
POLICE DEPARTMENT                                                      INTER-DEPARTMENTAL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
 
To:  Jeff Gagnon, Planning & Zoning Administrator 
 
From:  Michael Madden, Commander of Police 
  
Date:  March 15, 2011 
 
Re:  Site Plan Review – Ambrosia of the Palm Beaches – 2675 Lake Drive 
 
 
The Riviera Beach Police Department submits the following conditions and 
recommendations regarding Ambrosia of the Palm Beaches, located at 2675 Lake 
Drive, Riviera Beach, FL 
 
Overview 
 
Ambrosia of the Palm Beaches operates a residential drug and alcohol treatment 
program from two locations on Lake Drive.  The treatments occur at 2626 Lake Drive 
and the residential component occurs at 2675 Lake Drive.  Up to 20 clients can eat, 
shower, and sleep at 2675 Lake Drive and are escorted by staff to 2626 Lake Drive for 
counseling.   Ambrosia of the Palm Beaches has occupied both locations since March 
of 2009. A typical client remains at the program for approximately 30 days. 
 
Call Volume since March of 2009 
 

• The Riviera Beach Police Department received 8 calls for services at 2675 Lake 
Drive, which is the location where clients reside (call log attached). 

o 1 call was for trespassing 
o 1 call was for a disturbance 
o 1 unfounded 911 call 
o 3 medical calls 
o 2 calls for combative patients 

 
• The Riviera Beach Police Department received 30 calls for services at 2626 Lake 

Drive, which is the location where clients go for treatment (call logs attached). 
o 20 of these calls were unfounded 911 calls 
o 4 of these calls were for disturbances 
o 1 call for a mentally ill person in need of a Baker Act. 
o 1 call for a reported suicide attempt 

 
• There were a total of 38 calls for service at both locations since March of 2009 



 
 

Ambrosia Treatment Center of Port St. Lucie  
 

Ambrosia Treatment Center operates a second location in Port St. Lucie, Florida.  The 
Port St. Lucie center utilizes 4 separate single family homes that are all adjacent to 
each other.   The Port St. Lucie location operates that same residential level of care 
program as Ambrosia of the Palm Beaches (Riviera Beach). 
 
The Port St. Lucie Police Department was contacted and the call history was obtained 
for each of the residential locations (for the past two years - logs attached). 
 

• 1091 Bayshore Drive – 12 calls for service 
o 3 medical calls 
o 1 neighbor trouble 
o 3 disturbance/suspicious incident 
o 1 trespassing cal involving a stolen car 

• 766 Duval Avenue – 2 calls for service 
o 1 medical and 1 suspicious incident 

• 782 Duval Avenue – 1 call for service 
o 1 medical call 

• 798 Duval Avenue – No call history 
 

Physical Inspection 
 
The physical inspection of 2675 Lake Drive indicated that the property was very well 
maintained and the grounds were well manicured. 
 
Documents were obtained that indicate that curfews and rules are in place to manage 
the residential component.  It was indicated that there is a staff person present at 2675 
Lake Drive 24-hours per day, 7 days per week. 
 
 
Effect on Area 
 

• This type of use will cause a greater demand on police and fire services, due to 
an elevated call volume. 

• Patients go through detoxing, which often leads to an altered mental state and 
increases the chances of medical emergencies.  In these instances, Police and 
Fire services may be called in to assist with combative patients. 

• By the nature of the business and the program, patients are transient; therefore 
this use takes away from continuity of the multifamily zoning. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Recommendation 
 
The Ambrosia of the Palm Beaches Treatment Center has an elevated call history, at 
both the Port St. Lucie and the Riviera Beach locations.  This mixed use is not 
supported by the Police Department. 
 
 
 
 
CC: Clarence D. Williams, Chief of Police 
 Danny D. Jones, Asst. Chief of Police 
 David Harris, Asst. Chief of Police 
 Natalie Moore, Code Enforcement Administrator 



Planning and Zoning Board Meeting, 5.12.2011, Portable Storage Container Draft #2 
 
 Portable storage container: portable storage container, temporary storage unit, “POD”

 

 means 
any portable, weather-resistant receptacle designed and used for the temporary storage or 
shipment of household goods 

Portable storage containers. Portable storage containers are allowed in residential zoning districts 
and residential legal nonconforming uses,
(a) A permit 

 subject to the following conditions: 
with a fee is obtained from the Building Department Division for (10) ten 

business days 

1. Two copies of a drawing or 

a maximum of (2) two weeks from the date of delivery of container.  Permit fees 
will be paid at the time of permit issuance.  

site

2. A copy of an approval letter from 

 plan showing the location of the portable storage 
container to scale on the property. 

a the property’s Home Owners Association or 
Property Owners Association may be is

(b) If a storage container is to be located on the 
 required. 

premises property more than (10) ten 
business days (2) two weeks, an extension to the permit must be approved by the 
Building Official and a new fee must be paid for the permit extension.  This process must 
be followed for each subsequent permit extension.  Additional fees will be required for 
each (10) ten business day month at increasing intervals to period for a maximum of (6) 
six (3) three months.  After which time if the portable storage container is not removed a 
citation from Code Enforcement can be issued for the maximum civil penalty of $500.00 
per day

(c)  No storage container shall be located closer than 5 feet from a property line unless 
approved by the Community Development Director. 

. 

(d) No storage container shall obstruct traffic vision or be located within a visibility triangle. 
1.  The triangular area of property located at a corner formed by the intersection of 

two or more public rights-of-way. Two sides being 25 feet in length along the 
abutting public right-of-way lines and pavement edges, measured from their point 
of intersection, and the third side being a line connecting the ends of the two other 
sides. 

(e) No portable storage container shall have dimensions greater than (20) twenty feet in 
length and (8) eight feet in width and height. Storage capacity shall be no greater than 
(1280) one thousand two hundred eighty cubic feet. 

(f) Not more than (2) two portable storage containers smaller than (20) twenty feet by (8) 
eight feet and totaling (1280) one thousand two hundred eighty cubic feet shall be located 
on a lot property at any given time or (1)

All portable storage containers in use on a lot shall be in a condition free from rust, 
peeling paint and other visible forms of deterioration. 

 one at the maximum size of (20) twenty feet by 
(8) eight feet in width and height. 

(g) No portable storage container is to be located in the street or any part of the public right-
of-way. 
 
 

 


	P&Z AGENDA 5.12.2011.pdf
	Thursday, May 12, 2011                        600 West Blue Heron Boulevard
	II. ROLL CALL
	III. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA
	IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - April 14, 2011
	V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	VI. NEW BUSINESS

	VII. GENERAL DISCUSSION
	VIII. ADJOURNMENT
	UNOTICE


	4.14.2011 PnZ Minutes Edited 5.5.2011
	PnZ Legal Ads, 5.12.2011
	Mail Out SE-11-01 Ambrosia Treatment Center  5.12.2011
	PnZ Legal Ad, SE-11-01 Ambrosia Treatment Center  5.12.2011(2).pdf
	2675 Lake Dr. Location Map

	Ambrosia SE-11-01 Staff Report 5.5.2011
	Portable Storage Draft2 5.5.2011

